AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

of the

LAKEVIEW SCHOOL DISTRICT

and the

LAKEVIEW PARAEDUCATOR EMPLOYEES

CHAPTER OF LOCAL #331

AFFILIATED WITH AFSCME COUNCIL 25

Effective July 1, 2006

13090

to

06 30 2009 AFSCME

June 30, 2009

P

Table of Contents

		<u>Page</u>
Autiala	Proposal	3
Article 1	Purpose and Intent	4
2	Definitions	4
3	Recognition	4 .
4	Union Security	5
5	Union Dues and Service Fees	5
6	Board Rights	6
7	Union Representation	7
8	Aid to Other Unions/Individuals	7
9	Union Rights	7
10	Special Conferences	8
11	Grievance Procedure	8
12	Discharge and Discipline	10
13	Seniority	11
14	Worker's Compensation Leave	13
15	Work Schedule	13
16	Job Descriptions/Duties	15
17	Evaluations	15
18	Employee Protection	15
19	Involuntary Transfer	15
20	Layoff and Recall	15
21	Vacancies	16
22	Resignations	17
23	Consolidation or Elimination of Jobs	17
24	Sick Leaves or Absences	17
25	Emergency/Personal Leave	18
26	Funeral Leave	18
27	Holidays	19
28	Jury Duty/Court Appearance Leave	19
29	Unpaid Leave of Absence	19
30	Health Examinations	20
31	Bargaining Unit Work	21
32	Rates for New Positions	21
33	Wages	21
34	Severability	22
	Duration of Agreement	23

PROPOSAL

This Agreement covering Paraeducator Employees is entered into on this 20th day of November 2006, between the Lakeview Board of Education (hereinafter referred to as the "Employer" and the Lakeview Paraeducator employees, Chapter of Local #331, affiliated with Council 25 and the International Union of American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO (hereinafter referred to as the "Union"). This Agreement will become effective upon ratification by the both the Board and the Union.

ARTICLE I

PURPOSE AND INTENT

It is the purpose of this Agreement to set forth the terms and conditions of employment for members of the bargaining unit and to establish rights and obligations between the Employer and the Union. The parties additionally recognize the mutual interests of the Employer, the Union and the employees in the performance of services operated by the employer under methods which will further add economy and efficiency of operation, protection and safety of students, and avoidance of interruptions to service. The parties to this Agreement desire to cooperate in securing the advancement and attainment of these purposes.

ARTICLE 2

Definitions

- A. The word "Employer." The word "Employer" as used herein, means the Lakeview Board of Education, or its appointed representative, such as the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee.
- B. The word "Employee." The word "Employee" as used herein, means unless the context of an article or paragraph otherwise requires, all regular full-time and regular part-time employees of the Lakeview School District Paraeducators, otherwise known as: Classroom Paraeducators, Special Education Paraeducators, and Alternative Education Paraeducators, and Title I Paraeducators.
- C. The word "union." The word "union" as used herein, means Lakeview School District Employee Paraeducators of Local Union #331, affiliated with Council #25 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO.
- D. The word "Probationary Employee." The words "Probationary Employee," as used herein will refer to a Paraeducator in the first ninety (90) working days of employment who shall not be represented by the Union for the purposes of discipline or discharge.

ARTICLE 3

RECOGNITION

Pursuant to and in accordance with the Certification of Representatives in MERC Case Number R97T-132, the Employer recognizes the Union as the exclusive representative for purposes of collective bargaining in respect to rates of pay, wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment, the term of this Agreement, for all employees of the Employer included in the bargaining unit described below:

All regular full-time and regular part-time paraeducators, i.e., classroom paraeducators, special education paraeducators, alternative education paraeducators and Title I paraeducators, excluding all other employees including substitutes.

ARTICLE 4

Union Security

- A. Employees covered by this Agreement shall be required as a condition of continued employment to:
 - 1. join the Union and pay Union dues; or
 - pay the Union a service fee which shall be determined in a legally permissible manner and which shall be a legally permissible amount not to exceed Union dues.
- B. The Union shall impose no discriminatory qualifications for membership by reason of race, color, religious creed, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, or numerical restrictions of total membership, unless based upon a bona fide occupational qualification, and the Union shall grant to allow members equal voting rights.
- C. The Union agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the District, its Board of Education, past and present members of the Board of Education and School District administrative employees from any and all liability of whatsoever kind or nature that may be incurred as a result of compliance with this Article including, but not limited to, back pay, costs, expenses, unemployment compensation and attorney fees.

ARTICLE 5

UNION DUES AND SERVICE FEES

- A. After employees who desire to join the Union have served the probationary period, employees who desire to join the Union shall tender monthly membership dues by signing the Authorization for Check-Off of Dues Form provided by the Union. After employees who do not desire to join the Union have served the probationary period, they shall tender the service fee by signing the Authorization for Check-Off of Service Fee Form provided by the Union.
- B. Upon proper presentation of the forms identified in Section A to the School Business Office, the Employer agrees to deduct Union membership dues levied in accordance with the Union and service fees from the pay of each employee who has executed the Authorization.

BOARD RIGHTS

- A. Nothing contained herein shall be considered to deny or restrict the Board of its rights, responsibilities and authority under the Michigan Revised School Code, or any other laws or regulations. Except as specifically stated by this Agreement, all the rights, powers and authority the Board had prior to this Agreement are retained by the Board. Such rights shall include, by way of illustration and not by way of limitation, the right to:
 - Manage and control its programs, services, equipment, facilities and its operations and to direct the working forces and affairs of the School District.
 - Continue its rights of assignment and direction of personnel, determine the number of personnel (including the right not to fill open positions for the purpose of attrition) and scheduling of all the foregoing, and the right to establish, modify or change any work or school hours or days.
 - 3. The right to direct the working forces, including the right to hire, promote, suspend and discharge employees for just cause, transfer employees, assign work or duties to employees, determine the size of the work force and to lay off employees.
 - 4. Adopt reasonable rules and regulations and to define job content and position descriptions.
 - 5. Determine the qualifications of employees, including the essential job functions of employees.
 - 6. Determine the extent and existence of educational programming and operation including the establishment or relocation of programs, building, department, divisions or subdivisions thereof and the relocation or closing of programs, departments, divisions, or subdivisions, buildings, other facilities, services or third party service contracts.
 - Determine the financial policies, including all accounting procedures and recordkeeping requirements.
 - 8. Determine policies affecting the selection, testing or training of employees.
 - To establish courses of instruction and in-service training programs for employees and to require attendance at any workshop, conference, etc. by employees, including special programs.
 - 10. Determine standards of dress.
- B. The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, duties, and responsibilities by the Board and the adoption of policies, rules and regulations and practices in the furtherance thereof, shall be the exclusive prerogative of the Board except as otherwise limited by express provisions of this Agreement.

UNION REPRESENTATION

A. <u>Stewards, Alternate Stewards and Unit Chairperson.</u> The Employees covered by this Agreement will be represented by two (2) Stewards and a Chapter Chairperson. The Union shall have the exclusive right to assign Stewards as follows:

One (1) Unit Chapter Chairperson

Two (2) Paraeducator Stewards

One (1) Alternate Steward

The Employer will be notified of the names of the officers.

The Employer will be notified of the names of the alternate stewards who would serve only in the absence of the regular steward.

ARTICLE 8

AID TO OTHER UNIONS/INDIVIDUALS

The Employer will not aid, promote or finance any labor group, individual, or organization which purports to engage in collective bargaining or make any agreement with such group, individual, or organization for the purpose of undermining the Union.

ARTICLE 9

UNION RIGHTS

A. Bulletin Boards and School Mail. The Union shall have the right to post notices of its activities and matters of Union concern on faculty room bulletin boards. The Union agrees to pay the cost of all materials and supplies incidental to such use. The Union shall assume responsibility for all such material posted, and in no event shall anything derogatory to the Employer be placed or allowed to remain on such bulletin boards.

The Union may use the District mail service and Paraed mailboxes for communications to Paraeducators if such communication does not violate Federal Postal Regulations. Should the communication being distributed require postage and use of the U.S. mail, the Union shall pay all such costs.

B. Use of Facilities. The Union and its representatives shall have the right to use school buildings for meetings and office equipment for Union business. The Union agrees to pay the cost of all

materials and supplies incidental to such use. The Union agrees to pay any custodial costs, which would not otherwise be incurred, and the cost of all materials and supplies incidental to such use.

ARTICLE 10

SPECIAL CONFERENCES

- A. Special meetings between the Union and the Board may be called by mutual agreement for the purpose of discussing important matters. Normally the arrangement for the special meetings will be made between the Chairperson and the Superintendent or designee. Such arrangements will include an agenda, a specified time and place for the meeting and the names of the persons to be invited. If there is agreement to hold the meeting during regular working hours, employees participating shall not suffer a loss of pay for the time spent in attending the meeting.
- B. The Union representatives may meet on the Employer's property for at least one-half hour immediately preceding the conference.

ARTICLE 11

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

It is the intent of the parties to this Agreement that the grievance procedure set forth herein shall serve as a means for peaceful settlement of disputes that may arise between them as to the application and interpretation of this Agreement. In order to be a proper matter for the grievance procedure, the grievance must:

- a. be presented within ten (10) working days of the occurrence. The term
 "days" shall be defined as days when the Employer's central office
 is open for business;
- b. cite the specific part of the agreement violated;
- c. describe the violation;
- d. identify relief sought.

Upon meeting the above conditions, the Employer will answer, in writing, any grievance presented to it in writing by the Union. The following matters shall not be subject to the grievance procedure:

- a. any dispute involving the evaluation of an employee unless it is alleged that the evaluation constitutes discipline.
- b. any complaint within the jurisdiction of a state or federal agency;
- c. any complaint pertaining to the termination of a probationary employee;
- d. any dispute related to the provisions of any insurance contracts or policies.

Step 1 Any employee having a grievance shall present it to the Employer as follows:

- a. If an employee has a grievance, the grievance shall be discussed with the union steward.
- b. The steward and the grievant shall discuss the grievance with the immediate supervisor within ten (10) days of the grievant's knowledge of the facts upon which the grievance is based.
- c. If the matter is thereby not disposed of, it will be submitted in written form by the steward to the immediate supervisor within five (5) days of the date it was discussed with the immediate supervisor. Upon receipt of the grievance, the immediate supervisor shall sign and date the steward's copy of the grievance.
- d. The immediate supervisor shall give the answer to the steward within five (5) working days of receipt of the grievance.

Step 2 If the grievance remains unsettled, it may be presented by the Chapter Chairperson, in writing to the Superintendent of Schools within five (5) working days after the response of Step 1 is due. The Superintendent of Schools shall sign and date the Chapter Chairperson's copy. The Superintendent shall hold a meeting between the Union and all parties involved. A Council Number 25 representative may be present at the meeting. The Superintendent of Schools shall respond, in writing, to the Chapter Chairperson within five (5) working days after the meeting has been held.

Step 3

a. If the answer at Step 2 is not satisfactory, and the Union wishes to carry it further, it shall within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the Employer's answer at Step 2, meet with the Employer for the purpose of attempting to resolve the dispute and select an arbitrator. If the parties cannot mutually agree upon an arbitrator and the Union wishes to carry the matter further, it shall file a demand for arbitration with the American Arbitration Association no later than forty (40) calendar days from the date of the Employer's answer to Step 2. The arbitrator shall be selected in accordance with the American Arbitration Association's rules and regulations.

NOTE: Arbitration of grievances are limited to the following articles: Agency shop, discipline and discharge, union dues, layoff and recall, suspensions, vacancy and promotion.

- The arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in accordance with the American Arbitration's rules and regulations.
- c. There shall be no appeal from any arbitrator's decision provided the decision is within the jurisdiction and authority of the arbitrator. The decision shall be final and binding on the Union's members and the employee or employees involved, and the Employer. The arbitrator's jurisdiction and authority are subject to the following limitations:

- The arbitrator shall make a judgment based on the express terms of this Agreement and shall have no power to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter or modify any of the terms of this agreement.
- The arbitrator shall have no power to establish salary schedules or change any salary.
- The arbitrator shall have no power to interpret state or federal law except as may be necessary to determine whether a grievance is arbitrable.
- 4. The arbitrator shall have no power to rule on the following:
 - (a) The termination of services of or failure to reemploy any probationary employee.
 - (b) Any manner involving employee evaluation unless it is alleged that the evaluation constitutes discipline.
 - (c) Any complaint for which there is another remedial procedure or forum established by law or regulation having force of law.
- 5. The arbitrator shall have no power to award interest or punitive damages.
- d. The expense for the arbitrator shall be shared equally between the Employer and the Union.
- e. Time limits to any grievance may be extended in writing for a mutually agreeable time at the written request of either party.
- f. The Chairperson and the steward of the Union committee shall be allowed reasonable time off the job without loss of time or pay to investigate grievances with prior approval of the appropriate program Director or the Superintendent.

If a grievance is not filed or appealed within the time limits set forth in this grievance procedure, the grievance shall be considered settled and all further proceedings shall be barred. The Employer's failure to answer a grievance at any step within the applicable time limits shall constitute a denial of the grievance at that step and the grievance shall be automatically advanced to the next step.

ARTICLE 12

DISCHARGE AND DISCIPLINE

- A. <u>Notice of discharge or discipline</u>. The Employer agrees promptly upon discharge or discipline of any Employee to notify, in writing, the Chairperson of the Union.
- B. The discharged or disciplined employee will be allowed to discuss his/her discharge or discipline with the Chairperson of the Union and the Employer will make available an area where he/she may do so before he is required to leave the property of the Employer. Upon request, the employer will discuss the discharge or discipline with the employee and the Chairperson of the Union.

C. Appeal of discharge and discipline. Should the discharged or disciplined employee and/or the Chairperson of the Union consider the discharge or discipline to be without just cause, a grievance shall be presented in writing through the Chairperson of the Union to the Employer within five (5) regularly scheduled working days of the discharge or discipline. The Employer will review the discharge or discipline and give an answer within five (5) working days after receiving the complaint. If the decision is not satisfactory to the Union, then matters shall be referred to the second step of the grievance procedure within five (5) working days of the Employer's answer.

ARTICLE 13

SENIORITY

A. "Seniority" shall be defined as the length of a bargaining unit member's continuous and uninterrupted employment in the respective seniority classifications of this bargaining unit from the employee's initial date of hire in such classification(s). If two or more employees are hired on the same date, the employee with the higher social security number will have the higher seniority.
Time spent on layoff or unpaid leave of absence shall not accumulate as service time

for seniority purposes. However, accrued seniority shall be retained, subject to

Paragraph F of this Article.

when movement is made to a new classification.

- Seniority may be exercised only within the classification in which it is accumulated. Movement from one classification to another shall not terminate seniority that the employee has previously accumulated in any other classification under this Agreement, provided there has not been a break in continuous employment. However, seniority in the employee's previous classification shall not continue to accrue
- B. All new employees, shall be probationary employees for the first ninety (90) work days of employment. Probationary employees who are absent on scheduled work days shall work additional days equal to the number of days absent and such employees shall not have completed their probationary period until these additional days have been worked.
 - During the probationary period, the employee shall have no seniority status and may be laid off or have employment terminated at the sole discretion of the employer.
- C. Upon satisfactory completion of the probationary period, the employee's name shall be entered on the seniority list as of the most recent date of hire, inclusive of the probationary period.
- D. The Employer shall prepare and maintain a seniority roster showing the length of service of each bargaining unit member within the respective seniority classification(s). The roster shall contain the employee's name, classification(s) and date of hire in that classification, and if applicable, date of

leaving that classification to enter another classification under this Agreement. A copy of the list shall be furnished to the Chapter Chairperson not later than November 1, annually. If no objections are received within twenty (20) working days thereafter as to the accuracy of the seniority list, the Board's list shall be regarded as conclusive. In the event more than one bargaining unit member has the same length of service in a seniority classification, seniority placement on the list shall be determined by the employee with the higher social security number.

E. The Employer shall provide an updated seniority list upon request. Seniority under this Agreement shall be on a classification basis.

The seniority classifications of this bargaining unit are as follows:

General Classroom paraeducators:

- (a) Classroom paraeducators
- (b) Kindergarten paraeducators

Special Education paraeducators:

- (c) Special Education Classroom paraeducators
- (d) Health Care paraeducators
- (e) Title 1 paraeducators
- (f) Alternative Education paraeducators

F. Loss of Seniority

Seniority (in all pertinent classifications) shall be lost for the following reasons:

- The employee quits (including, but not limited to, situations where a settlement has been made with the employee for separation).
- The employee retires.
- The employee is discharged (and not reinstated through procedures set forth in this Agreement).
- 4. The employee fails to return from an unauthorized leave of absence on the agreed upon date, unless the Employer and the employee shall have otherwise expressly agreed in writing.
- 5. The employee is absent for three (3) consecutive work days without notifying the Employer, in which case the employee shall be considered a voluntary quit.
- 6. The employee is laid off or has not, for any reason, worked for the Employer for a continuous period exceeding twenty four (24) months.
- 7. The employee falsified information on his/her application for employment.

8. The employee fails to return to work within five (5) working days after issuance of a notice of recall to the last known address of the employee as shown on the Employer's records. It shall be the responsibility of the employee to provide the Employer with a current address.

The enumeration of the above conditions for automatic loss of seniority (and separation from employment) shall not be regarded or construed as limiting the Employer's right to discipline or discharge employees for other reasons.

ARTICLE 14

WORKERS' COMPENSATON LEAVE

Any paraeducator who is absent because of an injury or disease sustained or contacted during the course of his/her employment by the Lakeview School District and which is compensable under the Michigan Worker's Compensation Act, shall, at the employee's option, receive fractional sick leave pay of the difference between the workers' compensation benefit and his/her regular salary for the duration of the illness. However, any fractional differential of sick leave shall be deductible from the individual's accumulated sick leave. It is the intent of the parties that an employee receiving Workers' Compensation will receive no more and no less take-home pay than what he/she receives for a regular gross per diem rate.

ARTICLE 15

WORK SCHEDULE

- A. The Board specifically reserves the right to schedule the work day, the work week, and the work year in accordance with program needs. Nothing in this Article shall be construed as a guarantee of a specific number of working hours per day or per week.
- B. The normal work week for full-time employees shall consist of a regular schedule defined at the beginning of the work year. Full time employees having a different work week will be notified, as will the Union.
- C. Regular daily working hours shall begin not earlier than 6:00 a.m. and end not later than 7:00 p.m. The Board reserves the right to change schedules when program or transportation needs require it. In this event, a minimum of three (3) working days notice will be given.
- D. Employees who are scheduled to work at least four (4) hours or more on a given day will be allowed one ten (10) minute paid work-break daily to be scheduled by the immediate supervisor, taking into consideration program needs and the scheduled lunch period for each employee. Work breaks shall not be cumulative.

- E. The work day for those bargaining unit members scheduled to work at least thirty (30) hours or more per week shall include a lunch period of thirty (30) minutes duration to be scheduled by the immediate supervisor between 11:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. each day. Where the bargaining unit member is required to remain in their assigned facility for purposes of responding to work requirements during the lunch period, the thirty (30) minute interval shall be paid at the bargaining unit member's regular rate. Where the bargaining unit member is not required to respond to work requirements and remain in their assigned facility during the lunch period, the thirty (30) minute interval shall be unpaid.
- F. Scheduled days and hours of student instruction which are not held because of conditions not within the control of school authorities, such as inclement weather, fire, epidemics, mechanical breakdowns, or health conditions (as defined by city, county, or state health authorities) will be rescheduled as necessary to ensure instruction as prescribed by Michigan Law. Employees shall be excused from reporting for school on those days and hours which are canceled due to the above conditions at the discretion of the employer.

Employees will receive their regular hourly rate for days and hours that are canceled but shall work on the rescheduled days and hours with no additional compensation. Employees, who with administrative approval, worked on canceled days shall be paid for work performed on rescheduled days.

If school is canceled, due to the above conditions, after buses have departed to pick up pupils, employees may be required to report and remain for all or a portion of their regularly scheduled hours and shall be paid for time worked as well as for any rescheduled days/hours attributable to the cancellation of student instruction time on that day.

The parties agree that this contract provision has been negotiated to comply with the provisions of the Revised School Code and the State School Aid Act to ensure that the District will incur no loss of state aid. Further, the parties recognize the District's obligation to comply with requirements set forth by the State Board of Education respecting the number of "student Instruction" days as defined by that agency. In addition to any requirements of either the Revised School Code and/or the State School Aid Act to receive full state aid, the parties agreed to reschedule lost days of student instruction (attributable to the above conditions) to ensure the minimum number of instructional days required by the Department of Education for both regular school year and extended (e.g. 230 day programs).

Employees will follow the inclement weather cancellation and make-up schedule of the K-12 facility where their assigned duties are performed. Each employee shall be notified of his/her "assigned" building, for inclement weather purposes, at the beginning of the school year. However, assignments may be periodically changed as dictated by needs.

JOB DESCRIPTIONS/DUTIES

Upon, hiring, the employer shall furnish the employee with the standard written job description for his/her job.

Where job descriptions are changed significantly, the employer will discuss the changes with the Union.

Article 17

EVALUATIONS

Evaluations will not be used as a tool for discipline. First and second year paraeducators will be evaluated annually. Paraeducators with three or more years of experience will be evaluated at least once every three years.

ARTICLE 18

EMPLOYEE PROTECTION

Any case of assault upon an employee shall be promptly reported to the supervisor or designated representative. The Board shall render assistance to the Employee in connection with the handling of the incident by law enforcement authorities.

ARTICLE 19

INVOLUNTARY TRANSFERS

Involuntary transfers may occur due to declining enrollment or to more effectively serve the needs of students. When reassignments are made, the union will be advised of the rationale for making the change of assignment. An effort will be made to reassign employees in a manner that does not reduce the number of hours of the affected employee.

ARTICLE 20

LAYOFF AND RECALL

- (a) The word "layoff" means a reduction in the work force, or hours.
- (b) When a reduction in the number of paraeducator staff positions will result in layoff, the Superintendent or his/her designee will confer with the Chapter Chairperson of the Union regarding the reasons and the impact of the proposed layoffs.
- (c) When a layoff takes place in a specific classification, employees not entered on the seniority list shall be laid off first provided that a more senior employee is qualified to perform the duties of the remaining positions. Thereafter, employees shall be laid off in the inverse order of their seniority, i.e., the least

- senior employee on the seniority list being laid off first provided there are employees qualified to perform the duties of the remaining positions.
- (d) Employees to be laid off will receive at least a five (5) calendar days notice of the layoff. The Chapter Chairperson shall receive a list from the Employer of the employees being laid off on the same date the notices are issued to the employees.
- (e) Laid off employees may at their option become substitutes.
- (f) When the working force is increased after layoff, employees will be recalled according to seniority with the most qualified senior employee on layoff being recalled first. Notice of recall shall be sent to the employee at his/her last known address by registered or certified mail. If an employee fails to report for work within five (5) work days from receipt of the notice of recall, he/she shall be considered a quit. In proper cases, extensions may be granted by the Employer.
- (g) Employees will remain on the recall list for twenty-four (24) months following layoff or the length of their seniority whichever is less.

VACANCIES

- A. A vacancy shall be defined as a newly created position within a classification represented by the Union in this bargaining unit or a present position within a classification represented by the Union in this bargaining unit which position becomes vacant by reason of the permanent separation (resignation, death, discharge) of the bargaining unit member formerly in said position.
- B. Vacancies shall be posted for five (5) working days in a conspicuous place in all buildings before being filled. The Board shall not be required to post more than one (1) vacancy resulting from the successful biding or transfer of a bargaining unit member to a vacant position during the regular school year. Employees wishing to receive summer postings shall provide a self-addressed stamped envelope to the Employer.
- C. After the expiration of the posting period, the Board may fill the position by transfer of an employee within the classification or by awarding the position to another applicant. In making the decision to award the position to the applicant, the Board will consider the certification, job classification, qualifications, skills, abilities and experience of the applicants including the length of service in the school district and other relevant factors. When all factors are equal, seniority will prevail. The applicant selected shall be notified of his/her selection and the time and place to report for work.

- Employees desiring to apply for an initial vacancy must make written application within the posting period.
- E. Employees awarded a vacancy within their present classification in accordance with the terms of this Article, will be granted a ten (10) work day trial period to determine:
 - 1. Ability to perform the job; and
 - 2. desire to remain in the new job.

At the close of or during the trial period, the Board may return the employee to his/her former position if he/she is unable to perform the job, in the Board's judgment. The trial period shall be thirty (30) days where an existing employee is awarded a vacancy in another classification.

The employee may voluntarily return to his/her former position at any time during the trial period. During the trial period, the Board may utilize a substitute in the former position of the employee who has been awarded the vacancy.

ARTICLE 22

RESIGNATIONS

An employee is requested to give two (2) weeks written notice in advance of leaving, if possible.

ARTICLE 23

CONSOLIDATION OR ELIMINATION OF JOBS

The Employer agrees that a consolidation or elimination of jobs will not be affected without a meeting with the Union.

ARTICLE 24

SICK LEAVES OR ABSENCES

- A. All paraeducator employees employed by the District will be allowed up to ten (10) days paid sick leave per school earned at a rate of one day per month. This leave is cumulative; and if not used, carries over to subsequent years in full, with the limitation that the employee may not accumulate such sick leave in excess of one hundred (100) days.
- B. The Superintendent or designee can, in sole discretion and at the District's expense, order a medical report or a physician's examination concerning the health of an employee who uses paid sick leave in excess of five (5) days, or exhibits a pattern of absenteeism or suspected abuse.
- C. Sick leave may be used for:

- 1. the employee's illness;
- physical examinations, medical, dental or other health treatments which cannot reasonably be deferred and which cannot be scheduled outside of the employee's scheduled work time.
- An employee may use up to five (5) days of accumulated sick leave each year to attend to the illness of a minor child or spouse.
- All employees, while on paid sick leave, shall be deemed to be on continued employment for the purpose of computing all benefits referred to in this Agreement.

EMERGENCY/PERSONAL LEAVE

The Superintendent or designee, may at discretion, grant personal leaves of absence with pay to attend to urgent business that can only be transacted during the school day for a maximum of two (2) days for the following purposes: religious observance, death of a friend or relative not covered in funeral leave, family illness, and other business matters of an urgent or emergency nature. This leave may not be used for vacation, recreation, or social events or before or after a holiday or school break. While a reason is not required, it is expected that the use of personal leave days follow the guidelines outlined above.

A paraeducator must give notification not less than 48 hours in advance, except in extreme emergencies when they must give notification at the earliest possible time to their building administrator either personally or by telephone.

ARTICLE 26

FUNERAL LEAVE

Employees may take up to three (3) days per year of leave time with pay for attendance of funerals of members of their immediate family. If more than three (3) days are required, two (2) additional days may be used and deducted from sick leave or personal leave with prior approval of the immediate supervisor. This is interpreted to mean the employee's father, father-in-law, mother, mother-in-law, husband, wife, son, daughter, brother, sister, grandmother or grandfather or grandchild.

HOLIDAYS

During the 2006-2007 contract year, bargaining unit members will be compensated for two holidays.

During the 2007-2008 contract year, bargaining unit members will be compensated for two additional holidays for a total of four holidays.

During the 2008-2009 contracted year, bargaining unit members will be compensated for an additional holiday for a total of five holidays.

Holiday pay will be included in the first pay in January of each year

ARTICLE 28

JURY DUTY/COURT APPEARANCE LEAVE

- A. A leave of absence shall be granted for jury duty provided the employee applied for same immediately upon notice from the court. The Employee shall be paid the difference between the jury duty pay and regular wage for the period served. If the employee is released by the court during the employee's regular hours, the employee shall report to work.
- B. A leave of absence shall be granted when subpoenaed as a court witness in a job related situation without loss of pay where the employee is not a party to the action and where the employee is neither the plaintiff nor defendant. The employee shall be paid the difference between the witness fee and regular wage for the period. If the employee is released by the court during the employee's regular hours, the employee shall report to work.

Article 29

UNPAID LEAVE OF ABSENCE

The following leaves of absence without pay will be granted without loss or gain of seniority for paraeducators who have completed their probationary period. All such leaves shall be granted by the Superintendent or designee:

A. Child Care Leave

A leave of absence shall be granted to an employee for the purpose of child care. An employee who is pregnant shall be entitled, upon request, to a leave to begin at any time between the commencement of her pregnancy and one (1) year after a child is born to her. Such leave shall be

granted without pay or increment for a period not to exceed one (1) year beyond the date on which the leave became effective.

An employee who has adopted a child or is responsible for caring for a child living in his/her home shall be entitled, upon request, to a child care leave of up to one (1) year in length.

The employee shall notify the Superintendent or Superintendent's designee in writing of his/her desire to take a leave. The letter requesting leave shall include the anticipated date of return and, except in an emergency, shall give such notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the date on which the leave is to begin.

That portion of a leave taken by an employee because of a medical disability connected with or resulting from her pregnancy shall first be charged to her available sick leave.

- B. Serious Illness of the Employee or a Member of the Immediate Family.
 Leave due to illness shall be for a period of not more than one year. The Employer shall require medical verification. The definition for the immediate family for this Article is defined as the paraeducator's child, spouse, or any person who permanently resides in the paraeducator's household.
- C. A Paraeducator on an unpaid leave will not be entitled to accumulate sick leave or other paid leave.
- D. An employee returning from a leave of absence shall be required to notify the Employer in writing of the date of his/her intent to return three (3) weeks prior to such return. If an employee fails to return from an expired leave, it shall be construed as a voluntary resignation.
- E. An employee returning from a leave of absence shall be reinstated to the position and classification he/she held when his/her leave began provided the employee returns to work within sixty (60) work days.

ARTICLE 30

HEALTH EXAMINATIONS

Any medical examination required by the District or by Law will be paid for by the District at the District's designated physician.

NOTE: Hepatitis shots are provided by Board policy.

BARGAINING UNIT WORK

Non-bargaining unit members, including volunteers, students, booster groups, building rental groups, community service clubs, interns, as well as the supervisory or management personnel, will not be engaged in paraeducator unit work where the effect is to reduce, displace, or replace an Employee's regular hours of employment.

This will not preclude the use of students hired under Federal or State funded programs, provided they are not used to reduce, displace or replace the hours of bargaining unit employees.

ARTICLE 32

RATES FOR NEW POSITIONS

When a new position is created in the bargaining unit and cannot properly be placed in any existing classification, the Employer shall notify the Union in writing as to the intended classification and rate structure. In the event the Union does not agree, the Union shall request negotiation in writing within ten (10) working days of receipt of notice.

ARTICLE 33

WAGES

		2006-07	2007-08	2008-09
Level A	Starting Salary	10.12	10.32	10.53
Level B	Paraeducators with 1-5 years hired prior to 7/1/00*	10.31	10.52	10.73
Level C	Following 10 hours of professional development**	10.52	10.73	10.94
Level D	Following 20 hours of professional development**	10.83	11.05	11.27
Level E	Following 30 hours of professional development**	11.21	11.43	11.66
Level F	Following 40 hours of professional development**	11.61	11.84	12.08
Level G	Following 50 hours of professional development**	11.99	12.22	12.47

*Paraeducators who were hired prior to 7/1/00 and would have been placed on the second step of the previously negotiated salary schedule will be grandfathered at Level B until such time as they take additional professional development hours to move up to the next level. This level will not be available for paraeducators hired after 7/1/00.

Paraeducators who would have been placed on the third step of the previously negotiated salary schedule will be grandfathered at Level C until such time as they meet the professional development hours to move to Level D and above.

**At levels A-G, paraeducators will pay up to \$50 toward all approved outside District professional development activities. Paraeducators are encouraged to attend in district training, but attendance will not count toward professional development hours (i.e., spelling training, Running Record training). Following Level G, the District will pick up the cost of approved professional development activities. Professional development activities for the accumulation of hours must be approved by both the building administrator and the Assistant Superintendent of Restructuring and Curriculum.

Paraeducators will be limited to moving one level during any given school year, i.e., a paraeducator begins the school year at Level C. During the first three months of the year, she/he completes an additional 10 professional development hours. He/she will then move to Level D. However, if he/she completes another 10 professional development hours by April of that year, he/she will not be eligible to move to Level E until the beginning of the following school year.

Paraeducators who have met the criteria for Highly Qualified shall receive an additional \$.10 per hour.

An additional stipend of \$300 is available to paraeducators who have eight years of seniority within the bargaining unit and have accumulated 30 additional hours of approved professional development beyond the 50 hours necessary to obtain the highest level on the salary schedule. All approved hours earned after the 50 hours will count toward the 30 hours of additional professional development. Stipend to be paid the last pay period in June of each year.

ARTICLE 34

SEVERABILITY

If any part of this Agreement is rendered or declared illegal by legislation or by a court or administrative agency of competent jurisdiction, such term or provision shall immediately become invalid and unenforceable, but such invalidity and unenforceability shall not impair or affect any other term or provision of this Agreement.

Duration of Agreement

This Agreement shall become effective on July 1, 2006 and shall remain in full force and effect for a period of three (3) years thereafter, until June 30, 2009. Increase in pay will be retroactive to July 1, 2006. IN WITNESS HEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENT AS FULLY AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES OF THE PARTIES NAMED HEREIN ON

For the Uplon:

Milliam Maria Solo6

Maria Charles

Maria Chapter Chari

11/30/06

Maine Kyle

11/30/06

Livard

Maine Kyle

11/30/06